

<u>MEETING</u>

COMMUNITY LEADERSHIP COMMITTEE

DATE AND TIME

TUESDAY 14TH APRIL, 2015

AT 6.00 PM

VENUE

HENDON TOWN HALL, THE BURROUGHS, LONDON NW4 4BQ

TO: **MEMBERS OF COMMUNITY LEADERSHIP COMMITTEE (Quorum 3)**

Chairman: **Councillor David Longstaff** Vice Chairman: Councillor Graham Old

Councillors

Brian Gordon Alison Moore Mark Shooter Nagus Narenthira Agnes Slocombe Eva Greenspan Arjun Mittra

Charlie O-Macauley

Lisa Rutter

Substitute Members

Anne Hutton Wendy Prentice Alan Schneiderman

Kathy Levine Brian Salinger Peter Zinkin

You are requested to attend the above meeting for which an agenda is attached.

Andrew Charlwood - Head of Governance

Governance Services contact: Salar Rida 020 8359 7113

Media Relations contact: Sue Cocker 020 8359 7039

ASSURANCE GROUP

ORDER OF BUSINESS

Item No	Title of Report	Pages
1.	Minutes of last meeting	
2.	Absence of Members (If any)	
3.	Declaration of Members' Disclosable Pecuniary interests and Non Pecuniary interests (If any)	
4.	Report of the Monitoring Officer (If any)	
5.	Public Comments and Questions (If any)	
6.	Members' Items (If any)	
7.	Nomination of the Old Red Lion as an Asset of Community Value	1 - 8
8.	Any item(s) the Chairman decides are urgent	

FACILITIES FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES

Hendon Town Hall has access for wheelchair users including lifts and toilets. If you wish to let us know in advance that you will be attending the meeting, please telephone Salar Rida 020 8359 7113 salar.rida@barnet.gov.uk. People with hearing difficulties who have a text phone, may telephone our minicom number on 020 8203 8942. All of our Committee Rooms also have induction loops.

FIRE/EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the building by the nearest available exit. You will be directed to the nearest exit by uniformed custodians. It is vital you follow their instructions.

You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts.

Do not stop to collect personal belongings

Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but move some distance away and await further instructions.

Do not re-enter the building until told to do so.







THE CUIT MINISTERIUM	AGENDA ITEM 7 Community Leadership Committee 14 April 2015
Title	Nomination of the Old Red Lion as an Asset of Community Value
Report of	Director of Strategy
Wards	Underhill
Status	Public
Enclosures	None Elissa Rospigliosi, Commissioning & Policy Advisor

Summary

Hannah Chillingworth, Policy Officer

(elissa.rospigliosi@barnet.gov.uk, 020 8359 7158)

(hannah.chillingworth@barnet.gov.uk, 020 8359 3598)

The Localism Act 2011 introduced the Community Right to Bid ("the Right"), a new right for local people to nominate buildings or pieces of land that they believe contribute to the social interests or wellbeing of their local communities to be listed on a register of Assets of Community Value ("ACVs"), managed by the local authority.

The Right applies to public and private property, although there are a number of exceptions under the legislation, including private residences.

Where land is listed as an ACV, if an owner of a listed asset subsequently wishes to dispose of it, there will be a period of time during which the asset cannot be sold or a qualifying lease granted or assigned (a qualifying lease is a lease originally granted for a 25 year term). This period is known as a moratorium and would ultimately be for a period of six months. The moratorium is intended to allow community groups the time to develop a proposal and raise the required capital to bid for the asset when it comes onto the open market at the end of that period. The owner is under no obligation to accept a bid from the community group and can sell the property to whomever they wish once the six month moratorium is over.

Some recent policy developments have sought to create greater recognition of the social value pubs contribute to communities.

Officer Contact Details

A nomination has been received to list the Old Red Lion as an Asset of Community Value and this report asks the Committee to make a decision on this nomination. Even though pubs may generally be considered "community assets", this report considers that the Old Red Lion fails to pass the statutory tests set by the Localism Act 2011 to be considered an "asset of community value" and should therefore not be listed by the Council. This is on the basis that the Old Red Lion has now ceased trading and there is no evidence to suggest that there is a realistic chance of it reopening as a public house within the next five years.

Recommendation

That the Committee does not list the Old Red Lion as an Asset of Community Value on the basis that it has now ceased trading and there is no evidence to suggest that there is a realistic chance of it reverting to its use as a public house within the next five years.

1 WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED

The Community Right to Bid

- 1.1 The Localism Act 2011 ("the Act") introduced a new right for groups of local people to nominate buildings or pieces of land which contribute to the "social wellbeing or social interests" of their local communities to be listed on a register of Assets of Community Value ("ACVs"), which the local authority is required to maintain.
- 1.2 Nominations can apply to public or private assets, although certain kinds of asset (such as private homes) are exempt.
- 1.3 The Act provides that the Council must consider whether the main use of the nominated asset does contribute to the social interests or wellbeing of the local community, and whether it is realistic to think it will continue to do this (whether or not the use remains exactly the same).
- 1.4 The Act defines social interests as 'including cultural, recreational, and sporting interests'. There is no further definition.
- 1.5 The Act provides that land in a local authority's area which is of community value may be included by a local authority in its register of ACVs only:
 - (a) in response to a community nomination, or
 - (b) where permitted by regulations made by the appropriate authority.
- 1.6 In England a community nomination can be made by a parish council or by a voluntary or community body with a local connection as defined in the Assets of Community Value Regulations 2012 ("the Regulations").

- 1.7 The statutory tests which the Council must apply when assessing a nomination are:
 - (i) Its main use furthers the social wellbeing or cultural, recreational or sporting interests of the local community; <u>and</u> it is realistic to think that the main use will continue to further the social wellbeing or cultural, recreational or sporting interests of the local community; or,
 - (ii) Where the main use does not currently have such a community benefit, in the "recent past" it did have <u>and</u> the Council considers it likely that it would be able to have such a use in the next 5 years.
 - (iii) That the nomination is a community nomination made by a community or voluntary organisation or group which qualifies under the Act to make the nomination.
- 1.8 Where either criterion i) or ii), and criterion iii) of the above is met, the Council must list the land or building on its register of Assets of Community Value.
- 1.9 If the Council lists the nominated land, a restriction is placed on the land if the land is registered. If the owner wishes to sell the asset or to lease it for more than 25 years, then the owner is legally obliged to notify the Council. The Council will then inform the nominating group which signals an interim moratorium period of six weeks where the nominating group or any other eligible community group may register an interest in bidding for the asset. If during the six weeks a local community group expresses an interest in taking on the asset and continuing its community use, then the sale is delayed for a six month period. This is designed to give the community group the opportunity to raise funds to try to purchase the asset at market value.
- 1.10 The owner is under no obligation to accept the community's bid over any other bid. There is no 'right of first refusal' for the community group, only the right to request the moratorium. The owner is free to work with other potential buyers and stimulate the wider market during the moratorium.
- 1.11 While the Act and Regulations do not state whether or not ACVs are material considerations in a planning context, the Government's non-statutory advice note on ACVs advises that this is at the discretion of the local authority. The advice note states, as follows:

the provisions do not place any restriction on what an owner can do with their property, once listed, so long as it remains in their ownership. This is because it is planning policy that determines permitted uses for particular sites. However the fact that the site is listed may affect planning decisions – it is open to the Local Planning Authority to decide whether listing as an asset of community value is a material consideration if an application for change of use is submitted, considering all the circumstances of the case.

(Community Right to Bid: Non-statutory advice note for local authorities, October 2012).

Barnet's planning procedures already take account of the social and community use of land or buildings when a planning application comes forward. Where an application in relation to an Asset of Community Value is being considered, the listing will be one of the considerations which can be taken into account by the relevant planning committee who can determine the appropriate weighting to be given to the listing.

- 1.12 The Act therefore has little or no impact unless an asset is being put up for sale or long term lease *and* local feeling about it is strong enough that local people have a constituted group in place to put in a proposal to buy it. Even if all these conditions are in place, the limitation is only the sixmonth delay, after which the owner can sell the asset to whomever they wish.
- 1.13 If an asset is listed, the asset owner has the right to appeal against this, initially through the Council's internal review process and subsequently through an appeal to the First Tier Tribunal.
- 1.14 If an asset is not listed, the Council must communicate its reasoning to the nominating group but the nominating group has no right to appeal against the decision.

Recent policy developments

- 1.15 The Government have committed to a review of all the Community Rights during the summer of 2015. The full scope of the review is not yet clear but there have been some specific recent developments which aim to create greater recognition of the social value contributed by local pubs:
 - On 26 January 2015, the Minister for Community Pubs announced that owners of listed Assets of Community Value, including pubs, would be required to apply for planning permission to change their use class.
 - On 23 March 2015, ministers held the UK's first Community Pubs day and launched a 'community asset certificate' available to any pub – although this is not related to the Assets of Community Value listing process.
- 1.16 More broadly, strengthening the restrictions the Act places on assets of community value, a Communities and Local Government Select Committee report published on 3 February 2015 recommended that the review of Community Rights should increase the moratorium on sale or lease of an ACV to nine months, as well as creating statutory obligations for ACVs to be considered as a material consideration. These recommendations have not yet been accepted but will feed into the Government's review of Community Rights due to take place in summer 2015.

Nomination of the Old Red Lion

- 1.17 The Enfield and Barnet branch of the Campaign for Real Ale (CAMRA) has nominated the Old Red Lion public house and its curtilage as an Asset of Community Value. This is an unincorporated group and has at least 21 individual members with a local connection.
- 1.18 The Old Red Lion was sold by its previous owners, McMullens Ltd, to Danescroft Land Ltd, and it ceased to trade as a pub on 28 February 2015.
- 1.19 The nominating group believes the property to be of community value on the grounds that:
 - When it was a pub, it hosted a range of social and community activities as well as serving the community with good food and drink.
 - The pub was well-located at the heart of the community; a short walk from the Dollis Valley Estate and the closest public house to High Barnet Underground Station.
 - The public house has historical relevance, dating back to 1890 where it was used as a watering hole for stagecoaches before climbing Barnet Hill.

Application of statutory tests as set by the Localism Act 2011

- 1.20 The nomination comes from an eligible group and all relevant information has been provided. Criterion (iii) of the statutory tests set out in paragraph 1.7 above was therefore met.
- 1.21 At the time the nomination was received, the Old Red Lion was still trading as a pub, but as it ceased to do so on 28 February 2015, the asset cannot currently be said to further the social interests and wellbeing of the local community. On these grounds, it does not pass statutory test (i) set out in paragraph 1.7 above.
- 1.22 Written evidence was provided by the applicant that the asset's use as a public house contributed to furthering the social interests and wellbeing of the community, in the form of a variety of social activities. This is supported by the existence of a Facebook page for the pub, giving details of these events. There was, therefore, a time in the recent past when the asset furthered the social interests and wellbeing of the local community.
- 1.23 On the evidence submitted by the nominating group, it is considered unlikely that the pub will reopen and that the asset will have a community benefit in the next five years. The evidence submitted by the nominating group includes a news release from the previous owner, which states that the pub has already been sold. No evidence has been provided that the new owner has any interest in reopening the building as a pub. There is

- also no specific evidence provided of interest by any local group in bidding for or reopening it; merely a general statement from the nominating group that they do not wish the pub to close. There is, therefore, a lack of any evidence that the building has a realistic prospect of reopening as a pub.
- 1.24 There is also evidence to suggest that there would not be enough demand to make running a pub in the area sustainable. The news release from the owner, provided by the nominating group, states that customer demand at the Old Red Lion had been falling for some time despite investment, and this statement is corroborated by data showing an upward trend in pub closures in the surrounding area. Residents also have access to another pub a short distance (185m) away, which suggests that there would be competition for any continuing demand for a pub in the area. This supports the idea that the prospect of the pub reopening is not a realistic one.
- 1.25 On these grounds, the nomination also fails statutory test (ii) set out in paragraph 1.7 above.
- 1.26 Even though pubs are generally considered "community assets", the Old Red Lion fails to pass the necessary statutory tests set by the Localism Act 2011 to be considered an "asset of community value".
- 1.27 This report therefore recommends that the Committee does **not** list the Old Red Lion as an Asset of Community Value.

2 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The Old Red Lion does not pass the statutory tests set by the Localism Act 2011 to be considered an Asset of Community Value, for the reasons set out in paragraphs 1.21 – 1.27. The recommendation is, therefore, that the Committee does not list the Old Red Lion as an Asset of Community Value

3 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED

- 3.1 The Council could decide to list the Old Red Lion as an Asset of Community Value, but this is judged to be inconsistent with the terms of the Localism Act 2011, as Assets of Community Value must have a realistic chance of furthering the social interests and wellbeing of the local community.
- 3.2 The asset owner has the right to appeal if they feel that their property has been wrongfully listed.

4 POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION

4.1 The Old Red Lion will be recorded on the Register of Assets of Community Value as an unsuccessful nomination, and the nominating group informed,

in writing, of the outcome.

5 IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION

5.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance

5.1.1 The Community Right to Bid process contributes to the Corporate Plan's objective to promote family and community wellbeing and support engaged, cohesive and safe communities by fulfilling one of the rights granted to local communities under the Localism Act 2011.

5.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability)

- 5.2.1 A decision not to list will have no impact on resources.
- 5.2.2 A decision to list the asset could expose the Council to costs if the asset owner decided to appeal this decision. If the listing were then overturned through the Council's internal processes there would be some costs in officer time to administer the review process. If the listing were then appealed through the First Tier Tribunal there would be a further cost to the Council in officer time, and in external legal fees of approximately £10,000. These costs would be managed within Council resources.
- 5.2.3 This exposure only applies if the nomination relates to an asset not owned by the Council, as the Council would otherwise be litigating against itself.

5.3 Legal and Constitutional References

- 5.3.1 The Localism Act 2011 gives the Council the responsibility to list assets nominated by local community groups as Assets of Community Value if these are deemed to pass the statutory tests set out in the Act.
- 5.3.2 Under the Council's Constitution (Responsibility for Functions Annex A) the responsibilities of the Community Leadership Committee include:
 - Grants to Voluntary Sector within the remit of the Committee
 - Registration and Nationality Services
 - Emergency Planning
 - Civic events
 - To maintain good community relations with Barnet's diverse communities ensuring that all communities have the opportunity to participate fully in the Borough's affairs.
 - To approve any non-statutory plan or strategy within the remit of the Committee that is not reserved to Full Council or Policy and Resources.

5.4 Risk Management

5.4.1 There are no risks associated with the decision not to list as an Asset of Community Value.

5.5 Equalities and Diversity

5.5.1 No negative differential impact on people with any characteristic protected under the Equality Act 2010 has been identified with regard to this nomination.

5.6 Consultation and Engagement

- 5.6.1 A draft amendment to the Council's Community Right to Bid policy was carried out between 11 February and 24 March 2014. The results of that consultation were set out in a report taken to the Community Leadership Committee on 25 June 2014 and the Council's guidance on the Community Right to Bid amended following agreement of that report.
- 5.6.2 More specifically, the nominating group has been engaged in dialogue as part of the process of administering the nomination, and given opportunities to submit evidence to support their claim.

6 BACKGROUND PAPERS

6.1 Community Right to Bid: Consultation and recent developments (Community Leadership Committee, 25 June 2014) http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s15687/Community%20Right%20to%20Bid%20Report.pdf.